
Funding proposal writing: 
Hitting the target

RESEARCH IN ACTION
LIBRARY WEEK, FACULTY OF MEDICINE AND HEALTH SCIENCES

Dr Tania Brodovcky

3 August 2018



2

Principal Investigator’s Association (March 2010, Vol 1, No 2)



E X P E C T A T I O N S ?
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Rules of engagement: Research funding

Source: penman-winton.com

Funding call 
(advertisement)

Funding 
proposal

Review
Funding 
award

Deadline



Unravelling some terminology

Funding calls

Funding announcement (FA)

Funding opportunity announcement (FOA)

Request for applications (RFA)

Calls for proposals



Plan ahead !

• Funding applications typically have to be submitted 
1 year before a project starts
“Grant season” typically April - October

• Utilise every opportunity
- if you are eligible
- if you are responsive to the funder’s criteria

Rules of engagement: Research funding



Rules of engagement: Research funding

Apply for 
funding
by the

Review
W..A..I..T

Outcome 
letter

Apply for ethics 
approval

Start 
project

Ethics 
approval

Funding awards
• Always made competitively
• Are only available for a given time period, 

typically 1 year (but can be 3-5 years)
• Can not be utilised retrospectively

Process

Report

DEADLINE



Rules of engagement: Research funding

• You don’t have to have ethics approval by the time of 
funding application (mostly)

• You must sometimes apply to different funders for the 
same project (20-80% chance)

• You can apply to more than one funder for same 
project at the same time, BUT…

• If at first you don’t succeed, try and try again !



• Consider the tiers of funding

Rules of engagement: Research funding

FMHS, SU sources
Early-career

R

International sources
Established

$$$$$$

National sources
Mid-career

RRR
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REMEMBER:

The funder has                      to give to research projects

YOUR AIM?  To get some!

Primary focus:  Ensure funder will not find reasons 
not to send your application for review (eg. late / incomplete / 
ineligible / over budget / ignoring guidelines)

Secondary focus:  Convince funder you have a relevant research 
question, present is clearly & concisely with sound scientific 
principles

Rules of engagement: Research funding



1. Identify appropriate funder(s)
& funding opportunities

later…

Ensure your needs & funder = match (responsive)

Where to start?

How would you know?

Steps in funding proposal writing



- Funder priority area(s)
- Your eligibility as student / staff
- Total budget & types of support
- Period of support 
- When start

Where to start?

1. Identify appropriate funder(s)
& funding opportunities

later…

Ensure your needs & funder = match

Steps in funding proposal writing



2.  Prepare a research protocol

Better yet… 

have one ready ☺

Where to start?Steps in funding proposal writing



2. Prepare a research protocol

• What you are going to do: Research methods
(detailed, including sample size)

• What you will need to do it:  Research budget
(item types, unit numbers, unit cost, total cost)

• Duration of your study: Research timeline
(when data collection will start, after protocol & ethics approval)

Where to start?Steps in funding proposal writing



QUALIFICATION ETHICS APPROVAL FUNDING

Clarity & Feasibility 
& Submit by deadline

Clarity & Feasibility 
& Submit by deadline

Clarity & Feasibility 
& Submit by deadline

Methodology focus Ethics issues focus Budget focus
Significance / impact

Enough detail for 
others to repeat

Strong scientific 
foundation;
Ethics detail

Scope & length & 
budget strictly
within limits

Golden thread with 
objectives at center

Strong rationale & 
health impact

Marketing document

$$$

Purposes of a protocol / proposal



Unravelling some terminology

Funding proposal

Funding application 

Grant proposal

Grant application

Grant funding proposal

Bursary / 
Fellowship / 
Scholarship



1. Identify appropriate funder(s) & funding 
opportunitie(s)

2. Prepare a research protocol

3. Study the GUIDELINES

4. Write the proposal in conjunction with role players

5. Proofread: Let someone else read through it 
for objective comments & edit
(not the day before the deadline )

6. Sign: Get all required signatures in time…

7. Submit before/by the DEADLINE
18

Steps in funding proposal writing



Q U E S T I O N :  
How important are the funder’s guidelines?



Application guidelines
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• Contain all the ‘clues’

• Mark items required, thus ‘what they want to hear’ 

• Tick off as each is addressed

• Complete the most recent application form 

• Complete ALL sections of form 
or indicate if Not Applicable (N/A)

• Stay within the guidelines
e.g. word / character limits, 
font, spacing & page format

STEP 3:  Study the funder’s guidelines



Application guidelines

21

STEP 3:  Study the funder’s guidelines
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• Page setup correct before you start!
A4 paper size vs Letter paper size

• Narrative style, simple English, future tense
(except Objectives – numbered)

• Don’t try to impress with grandiose statements, 
e.g.
“Subsequently translating practice into research through 
exploring the evidence-based practice which is promoted by 
research as well as what evidence-based practice mean within 
the community’s context.”

STEP 4:  Write the funding proposal
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• If no guidelines for font and other 

formatting, pick easy-to-read layout & font (≥11)
I do suggest not to use a weird font

• Use headings & leave some white space

• Refrain from abbreviations & field acronyms, 

especially abstract/summary/synopsis

• Edit & format meticulously & beware of 

‘copy & paste’

STEP 4:  Write the funding proposal
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• Don’t use capital letters
IT IS ALSO VERY ANNOYING AND HARD TO READ, 

EVEN IF IT IS ONLY USED IN THE TITLE OF YOUR PROPOSAL

• Use flow charts to simplify

• Use your spell & grammar checker
(Don’t be branded ‘sloppy’ / ‘not showing interest’ / 

‘not being serious’)

UK / South African English vs American English

STEP 4:  Write the funding proposal
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• There will mostly be a template

• Structure your proposal in a logical
and systematic manner

• Give context of bigger project if grant application 
only covers limited objectives / phase / section of 
longer-term project
(Call it a Pilot study if applicable)

• REMEMBER:  Market/sell yourself & your project

Follow the 
GUIDELINE 

instructions !

STEP 4:  Write the funding proposal



STEP 4:  Write the funding proposal

Budget 
needs

Methods / 
Work plan 

/ steps

Objective

Objective

A
IM

Timeline 
& Who

Timeline 
& Who

Methods / 
Work plan 

/ steps

Timeline 
& Who

Timeline 
& Who

Timeline 
& Who

Budget 
needs

Budget 
needs

Budget 
needs

Budget 
needs



How long should the proposal be ? 

Let the space allowed or character limits guide you…



FUNDING PROPOSAL TEMPLATE

SOURCE: NHLS Research Trust Research Award application form 2018 (adapted)



FUNDING PROPOSAL TEMPLATE



FUNDING PROPOSAL TEMPLATE



1. Identify appropriate funder(s) & funding 
opportunitie(s)

2. Prepare a research protocol

3. Study the GUIDELINES

4. Write the proposal in conjunction with role players

5. Proofread: Let someone else read through it 
for objective comments & edit
(not the day before the deadline )

6. Sign: Get all required signatures in time…

7. Submit before/by the DEADLINE
31

Steps in funding proposal writing



Step 3:  Proofread & have it proofread…STEP 5:  Proofread, proofread, proofread

“This study attempts to shade the light on…”
“Double blond RCT”
“…planning and implantation…”
“…medical imagining…”



Step 3:  Proofread & have it proofread…

,

STEP 5:  Proofread, proofread, proofread



Step 4:  Submit in time…and provide enough 
time for other signatures…

STEPS 6 & 7:  Sign & submit the proposal
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• Submit a complete application & by deadline
• Get all signatures & supporting documents 

safely ahead of deadline

• In format requested
e.g. hard copy and/or e-submission

• May have to submit via institution to external funder
(allow time for signatures and/or pre-approvals)

• REMEMBER: Be responsive to funder (or no review)

STEPS 6 & 7:  Sign & submit the proposal



Q U E S T I O N :  
Should you add attachments?



Curriculum vitae (CV) for funders

• Abbreviated (stick to page limits!) & adapted

• Biosketch format / narrative section helpful

• Must show your competency as PI 
for THIS particular project, 
e.g.
- relevant qualifications
- relevant research experience & skills
- publication & presentation record in field
(1st author papers are important)

- (project) management experience
- postgraduate supervision experience



Funding proposal review criteria

Source: penman-winton.com

Funding call 
(advertisement)

Funding 
proposal

Review
Funding 
award

Deadline



Q U E S T I O N :  
What do you think reviewers look for?



Sell your project & satisfy the reviewers:

(1) Are the research objectives clear?
(2) Is the methodology used appropriate 

and explained in sufficient detail?
(3) Is the project and timeframe feasible?
(4) Will the project have an impact on health research?
(5) Is the budget realistic?
(6) Is the research team comprehensive and likely to 

complete the project successfully (track record)?

Funding proposal review criteria



41

WHAT DO REVIEWERS LOOK FOR?

• Is the research question valid?

• Evidence to support gap in knowledge?

• Is the research area/field of merit and a
priority at this point in time?

• Are the aim(s) and specific objectives clear, 
specific and feasible?

• Are the objectives linked to the aim?

Funding proposal review criteria
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• Are the objectives flowing logically?

• Are the objectives not dependent on each 
other?

• Are the objectives feasible for the 

proposed timeframe and scope
- also for degrees: Hons, MSc, MMed, MPhil or PhD

(if applicable)?

• Is the study design the most appropriate 

to answer research question?

Funding proposal review criteria
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• Is the methodology to be used appropriate, 

clear & explained in sufficient detail?

• Is the budget realistic?

• Is the impact of the project significant?

Thus clinical/health relevance?

• Does the researcher and/or supervisor(s) 

have a good track record? Are they qualified

to succeed in executing this project?

Funding proposal review criteria
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Ethical considerations

Scientific merit of 
proposal

Significance of 
proposed research

Research design 
& methods

Track record & 
suitability of PI

Research capacity 
development

Alignment with 
research priority areas

Funding proposal review criteria
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Unique grant proposal features

Ethical considerations

Scientific merit of 
proposal

Significance of 
proposed research

Research design 
& methods

Track record & 
suitability of PI

Research capacity 
development

Alignment with 
research priority areas
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Ethical 
considerations

Investigator(s)

When your pipe dream crashes…



MRC SIR reviewer scoring
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RECOMMENDATION SCORE 
RANGE

POTENTIAL
FUNDING SUCCESS

Exceptionally high quality research, high 
impact in field internationally & highly 
significant scientific/health question or 
challenge

10 YES!

Excellent quality research, forefront in field 
internationally, likely high impact outcomes

9 YES!

Very good quality research, forefront 
nationally (possibly internationally), 
important question, tangible outcomes

8 MOST PROBABLY!

Average to good quality research, important 
question, modest impact on science and 
health

5 – 7 
(reviewer

must 
select one)

MAYBE…
BUDGET PERMITTING

Poor quality research, major conceptual 
frameworks / design / methods 
OR technically flawless research but minimal 
significance / innovation / interest

1 – 4 yOu’VE doNe soMethiNg
VeRY wRonG or it’S a VeRY
baD IdeA!
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1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10BEST

WORST
Not fundable (1 – 4)

Final score

Who will be awarded grants?
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Budget 
available

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10BEST

WORST
Not fundable (1 – 4)

Final score

Who will be awarded grants?
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• Not following guidelines / responsive

• Last-minute carelessly prepared applications

• Scope of project is too ambitious, too broad,

thus too many objectives

• Research team members not match expertise

required / not known

• Too little detail in methods

• Too much background

Some common mistakes



Undergraduate 
student

Post-graduate 
student 

Postdoctoral 
fellow

Early-career 
researcher

Mid-career 
researcher

Established 
researcher

1. Bursary / Fellowship / Salary funding

3. Research-related travel

2. Research project & equipment funding

Research funding sources



Where to access research 
funding opportunities



www.sun.ac.za/RDSfundingC
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http://www.sun.ac.za/RDSfunding


Where to access research 
funding opportunities

www.sun.ac.za/RDSfunding



• Custom search profile

• Scholarships / bursaries
AND/OR
Project funding in specific field

• Pre-screened for eligibility South Africans &
non-South Africans studying at SA universities

Look out for the next training session or access 

www.sun.ac.za/RDStraining

https://www.researchprofessional.com
Lizél Kleingbiel
(lizelk@sun.ac.za)

Where to access research 
funding opportunities

mailto:lizelk@sun.ac.za


The Recipe
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The funder has money to allocate, which you 
have to compete for, thus:

1. Do something new, relevant, which is part of the 
funder’s priority and in your & team’s area of 
expertise

2. Complete the form accurately, completely 
& professionally

3. Think like a reviewer and address all 
potential questions they may have 



Q U E S T I O N S ?


